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Water Quality Classification of Violations

(1) Class I:

(a) Causing pollution of waters of the state;

(b) Reducing the water quality of waters of the state below water quality standards;

(c) Discharging any waste that enters waters of the state, either without a waste discharge permit or from a discharge point not authorized by a waste discharge permit;

(d) Operating a discharge source or conducting a disposal activity without first obtaining an individual permit or applying for coverage under a general permit for that discharge or disposal activity;

(e) Failing to comply with statute, rule, or permit requirements regarding notification of a spill or upset condition, which results in a non-permitted discharge to public waters;

(f) Failing to take appropriate action, as required by the municipal wastewater treatment works owner's department-approved pretreatment-compliance oversight program, against an industrial discharger to the municipal treatment works who violates any pretreatment standard or requirement, if the violation impairs or damages the treatment works, or causes major harm or poses a major risk of harm to public health or the environment;

(g) Making unauthorized changes, modifications, or alterations to a facility operating under a Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF) or National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit;

(h) Allowing operation or supervision of a wastewater treatment and collection system without proper certification, by the permittee and/or owner;

(i) Applying biosolids or domestic septage to a parcel of land that does not have department approval for land application;

(j) Applying biosolids that do not meet the pollutant, pathogen or one of the vector attraction reduction requirements of 40 CFR 503.33(b)(1) through (10);

(k) Violating a technology based effluent limitation, except for removal efficiency, in an NPDES or WPCF permit if:

(A) The discharge level (except for pH and bacteria) exceeds the limitation by 50 percent or more;

(B) The discharge is outside the permitted pH range by more than 2 pH units;

(C) The discharge exceeds a bacteria limit as a result of an inoperative disinfection system where there is no disinfection; or

(D) The discharge of reclaimed water exceeds a bacteria limit by more than five times the limit.

(l) Violating a water quality based effluent limitation in an NPDES permit;

(m) Violating a WPCF permit limitation in a designated groundwater management area if the exceedance is of a parameter for which the groundwater management area was established;

(n) Failing to report an effluent limitation exceedance;

(o) Failing to collect monitoring data required in Schedule B of the permit;

(p) Contracting for operation or operating a prohibited Underground Injection Control (UIC) system other than a cesspool that only disposes of human waste;

(q) Operating an Underground Injection Control (UIC) system that causes a data verifiable violation of federal drinking water standards in an aquifer used as an underground source of drinking water; or

(r) Failing to implement an erosion and sediment control plan in accordance with an NPDES permit.

(2) Class II:

(a) Violating a technology based effluent limitation, except for removal efficiency, in an NPDES or WPCF permit if:

(A) the discharge level (except for pH and bacteria) exceeds the limitation by 20 percent or more, but less than 50 percent, for biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), carbonaceous chemical oxygen demand (CBOD), and total suspended solids (TTS), or by 10 percent or more, but less than 50 percent, for all other limitations;

(B) the discharge is outside the permitted pH range by more than 1 pH unit but less than or equal to 2 pH units;

(C) the discharge exceeds a bacteria limit by a factor of five or more, unless otherwise classified; or

(D) the discharge of reclaimed water exceeds a bacteria limit by an amount equal to or less than five times the limit.

(b) Failing to timely submit a report or plan as required by rule, permit, or license, unless otherwise classified;

(c) Causing any wastes to be placed in a location where such wastes are likely to be carried into waters of the state by any means;

(d) Violating any management, monitoring, or operational plan established pursuant to a waste discharge permit, unless otherwise classified; or

(e) Failing to timely submit or implement a Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) Implementation Plan, by a Designated Management Agency (DMA), as required by department order.

(f) Failing to comply with the requirements of OAR 340-044-0018(1) regarding the obtaining of authorization by rule to construct and operate an underground injection system.





340-012-0140

Determination of Base Penalty	Comment by PCAdmin:  We are still awaiting in put from the 401 program regarding matrices for violation of dredge and fill 401s.  The likelihood is that it will be based on the amount of material to be dredged or filled.

(1) Except for Class III violations and for penalties assessed under OAR 340-012-0155, the base penalty (BP) is determined by applying the type, class and magnitude of the violation to the matrices set forth in this section. For Class III violations, no magnitude determination is required.

(2) $8,000 Penalty Matrix:

(a) The $8,000 penalty matrix applies to the following:

(A) Any violation of an air quality statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person that has or should have a Title V permit or an Air Contaminant Discharge Permit (ACDP) issued pursuant to New Source Review (NSR) regulations or Prevention of Significant Deterioration (PSD) regulations, or section 112(g) of the federal Clean Air Act.

(B) Open burning violations as follows:

(i) Any violation of an open burning statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a permitted industrial facility.

(ii) Any violation of OAR 340-264-0060(3) in which 25 or more cubic yards of prohibited materials or more than 15 tires are burned, except when committed by a residential owner-occupant.

(C) Any violation of the Oregon Low Emission Vehicle rules (OAR 340-257) by an automobile manufacturer.

(D) Any violation of 468B.025(1)(a) or (1)(b), or of ORS 468B.050(1)(a) by a person without an National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit.

(E) Any violation of a water quality statute, rule, permit or related order by:

(i) A person that has a NPDES permit, or that has or should have a Water Pollution Control Facility (WPCF) permit, for a municipal or private utility sewage treatment facility with a permitted flow of five million or more gallons per day.

(ii) A person that has a major industrial source NPDES permit.

(iii) A person that has a population of 100,000 or more, as determined by the most recent national census, and either has or should have a WPCF Municipal Stormwater Underground Injection Control (UIC) System Permit, or has a NPDES Municipal Separated Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) Stormwater Discharge Permit.

(iv) A person that has or should have a WPCF permit for a major vegetable or fruit processing facility, for a major mining operation involving over 500,000 cubic yards per year, or for any mining operation using chemical leaching or froth flotation.

(v) A person that installs or operates a prohibited Class I, II, III, IV or V UIC system, except for a cesspool.

 (F)  A violation of a Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification by a 100 megawatt or more hydroelectric facility.

(F) Any violation of an underground storage tanks statute, rule, permit or related order committed by the owner, operator or permittee of 10 or more UST facilities or a person who is licensed or should be licensed by the department to perform tank services.

(G) Any violation of a heating oil tank statute, rule, permit, license or related order committed by a person who is licensed or should be licensed by the department to perform heating oil tank services.

(H) Any violation of ORS 468B.485, or related rules or orders regarding financial assurance for ships transporting hazardous materials or oil.

(I) Any violation of a used oil statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person who is a used oil transporter, transfer facility, processor or re-refiner, off-specification used oil burner or used oil marketer.

(J) Any violation of a hazardous waste statute, rule, permit or related order by:

(i) A person that is a large quantity generator or hazardous waste transporter.

(ii) A person that has or should have a treatment, storage or disposal facility permit.

(K) Any violation of an oil and hazardous material spill and release statute, rule, or related order.

(L) Any violation of a polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs) management and disposal statute, rule, permit or related order.

(M) Any violation of ORS Chapter 465, UST or environmental cleanup statute, rule, related order or related agreement.

(N) Unless specifically listed under another penalty matrix, any violation of ORS Chapter 459 or any violation of a solid waste statute, rule, permit, or related order committed by:

(i) A person that has or should have a solid waste disposal permit.

(ii) A person with a population of 25,000 or more, as determined by the most recent national census.

(b) The base penalty values for the $8,000 penalty matrix are as follows:

(A) Class I:

(i) Major — $8000;

(ii) Moderate — $4000;

(iii) Minor — $2000.

(B) Class II:

(i) Major — $4000;

(ii) Moderate — $2000;

(iii) Minor — $1000.

(C) Class III: $750.

(3) $6,000 Penalty Matrix:

(a) The $6,000 penalty matrix applies to the following:

(A) Any violation of an air quality statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person that has or should have an ACDP permit, except for NSR, PSD and Basic ACDP permits.

(B) Any violation of an asbestos statute, rule, permit or related order except those violations listed in section (5) of this rule.

(C) Any violation of a vehicle inspection program statute, rule, permit or related order committed by an auto repair facility.

(D) Any violation of the Oregon Low Emission Vehicle rules (OAR 340-257) by an automobile dealer or an automobile rental agency.

(E) Any violation of a water quality statute, rule, permit or related order committed by:

(i) A person that has a NPDES Permit, or that has or should have a WPCF Permit, for a municipal or private utility sewage treatment facility with a permitted flow of two million or more, but less than five million, gallons per day.

(ii) A person that has a minor industrial source NPDES Permit, or has or should have a WPCF Permit, for an industrial source.

(iii) A person that has or should have applied for coverage under an NPDES or a WPCF General Permit, except an NPDES Stormwater Discharge 1200-C General Permit for a construction site of one acre or more, but less than five acres in size and except for an NPDES 700-PM General Permit for suction dredges.

(iv) A person that has a population of less than 100,000 but more than 10,000, as determined by the most recent national census, and has or should have a WPCF Municipal Stormwater UIC System Permit or has an NPDES MS4 Stormwater Discharge Permit.

(v) A person that has or should have a WPCF permit for a mining operation involving from 100,000 up to 500,000 cubic yards other than those operations using chemical leachate or froth flotation.

(vi) A person that owns, and that has or should have registered, a UIC system that disposes of wastewater other than stormwater, sewage or geothermal fluids.

(F)  A violation of a Clean Water Act Section 401 Water Quality Certification by a less than100 megawatt hydroelectric facility.

(G)  Violation of ORS 468B.025(1)(a) or .025(1)(b) resulting from turbid discharges to waters of the state caused by non-residential uses of property.

(F) Any violation of an UST statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person who is the owner, operator or permittee of five to nine UST facilities.

(G) Unless specifically listed under another penalty matrix, any violation of ORS Chapter 459 or other solid waste statute, rule, permit, or related order committed by:

(i) A person that has or should have a waste tire permit; or

(ii) A person with a population of more than 5,000 but less than or equal to 25,000, as determined by the most recent national census.

(H) Any violation of a hazardous waste management statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person that is a small quantity generator.

(b) The base penalty values for the $6,000 penalty matrix are as follows:

(A) Class I:

(i) Major — $6,000.

(ii) Moderate — $3,000.

(iii) Minor — $1,500.

(B) Class II:

(i) Major — $3,000.

(ii) Moderate — $1,500.

(iii) Minor — $750.

(C) Class III: $500.

(4) $2,500 Penalty Matrix:

(a) The $2,500 penalty matrix applies to the following:

(A) Any violation of any statute, rule, permit, license, or order committed by a person not listed under another penalty matrix.

(B) Any violation of an air quality statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person not listed under another penalty matrix.

(C) Any violation of OAR 340-264-0060(3) in which 25 or more cubic yards of prohibited materials or more than 15 tires are burned by a residential owner-occupant.

(D) Any violation of a vehicle inspection program statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a natural person, except for those violations listed in section (5) of this rule.

(E) Any violation of a water quality statute, rule, permit, license or related order not listed under another penalty matrix and committed by:

(i) A person that has an NPDES permit, or has or should have a WPCF permit, for a municipal or private utility wastewater treatment facility with a permitted flow of less than two million gallons per day.

(ii) A person that has or should have applied for coverage under an NPDES Stormwater Discharge 1200-C General Permit for a construction site that is more than one, but less than five acres.

(iii) A person that has a population of 10,000 or less, as determined by the most recent national census, and either has an NPDES MS4 Stormwater Discharge Permit or has or should have a WPCF Municipal Stormwater UIC System Permit.

(iv) A person who is licensed to perform onsite sewage disposal services or who has performed sewage disposal services.

(v) A person, except for a residential owner-occupant, that owns and either has or should have registered a UIC system that disposes of stormwater, sewage or geothermal fluids.

(vi) A person that has or should have a WPCF individual stormwater UIC system permit.

(F) Violation of ORS 468B.025(1)(a) or .025(1)(b) resulting from turbid discharges to waters of the state caused by residential use of property less than one acre in size.

(F) Any violation of an onsite sewage disposal statute, rule, permit or related order, except for a violation committed by the residential owner-occupant.

(G) Any violation of an UST statute, rule, permit or related order if the person is the owner, operator or permittee of two to four UST facilities.

(H) Any violation, except a violation related to a spill or release, of a used oil statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person that is a used oil generator.

(I) Unless listed under another penalty matrix, any violation of a hazardous waste management statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person that is a conditionally exempt generator if the violation does not impact the person's generator status.

(J) Any violation of ORS Chapter 459 or other solid waste statute, rule, permit, or related order committed by a person with a population less than 5,000, as determined by the most recent national census.

(K) Any violation of the labeling requirements of ORS 459A.675 through 459A.685.

(L) Any violation of rigid pesticide container disposal requirements by a conditionally exempt generator of hazardous waste.

(b) The base penalty values for the $2,500 penalty matrix are as follows:

(A) Class I:

(i) Major — $2500;

(ii) Moderate — $1250;

(iii) Minor — $625.

(B) Class II:

(i) Major — $1250;

(ii) Moderate — $625;

(iii) Minor — $300.

(C) Class III: $200.

(5) $1,000 Penalty Matrix:

(a) The $1,000 penalty matrix applies to the following:

(A) Any violation of an open burning statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a residential owner-occupant at the residence, not listed under another penalty matrix.

(B) Any violation of visible emissions standards by operation of a vehicle.

(C) Any violation of an asbestos statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a residential owner-occupant.

(D) Any violation of an onsite sewage disposal statute, rule, permit or related order of OAR chapter 340, division 44 committed by a residential owner-occupant.

(E) Any violation of an UST statute, rule, permit or related order committed by a person who is the owner, operator or permittee of one UST facility.

(F) Any violation of an HOT statute, rule, permit or related order not listed under another penalty matrix.

(G) Any violation of a dry cleaning facility statute, rule, permit or related order.

(H) Any violation of a statute, rule, permit or order relating to rigid plastic containers, except for violation of the labeling requirements under OAR 459A.675 through 459A.685.

(I) Any violation of a statute, rule or order relating to the opportunity to recycle.

(J) Any violation of OAR chapter 340, division 262 or other statute, rule or order relating to solid fuel burning devices, except a violation related to the sale of new or used solid fuel burning devices or the removal and destruction of used solid fuel burning devices.

(K) Any violation of an UIC system statute, rule, permit or related order by a residential owner-occupant, when the UIC disposes of stormwater, sewage or geothermal fluids.

(L) Any violation by a person that has or should have applied for coverage under an NPDES 700-PM General Permit for Suction Dredges.

(b) The base penalty values for the $1,000 penalty matrix are as follows:

(A) Class I:

(i) Major — $1000;

(ii) Moderate — $500;

(iii) Minor — $250.

(B) Class II:

(i) Major — $500;

(ii) Moderate — $250;

(iii) Minor — $125.

(C) Class III: $100.

Stat. Auth.: ORS 468.020 & 468.090 - 468.140
Stats. Implemented: ORS 459.995, 459A.655, 459A.660, 459A.685 & 468.035
Hist.: DEQ 4-1989, f. & cert. ef. 3-14-89; DEQ 15-1990, f. & cert. ef. 3-30-90; DEQ 33-1990, f. & cert. ef. 8-15-90; DEQ 21-1992, f. & cert. ef. 8-11-92; DEQ 4-1994, f. & cert. ef. 3-14-94; DEQ 9-1996, f. & cert. ef. 7-10-96; DEQ 19-1998, f. & cert. ef. 10-12-98; DEQ 6-2001, f. 6-18-01, cert. ef. 7-1-01; Renumbered from 340-012-0042, DEQ 4-2005, f. 5-13-05, cert. ef. 6-1-05; DEQ 4-2006, f. 3-29-06, cert. ef. 3-31-06; DEQ 6-2006, f. & cert. ef. 6-29-06; DEQ 2-2011, f. 3-10-11, cert. ef. 3-15-11


